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tNT lIE UNITS) STATES L)ISTRICT COURT
FOR TIlE SOUFIIERN DISTRICT OF ALABAMA

SFLMA DIVISION

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
COMMISSION, )

)
Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. 1: 13-cv-0476-CB-M

V.
COMPLAINT

CATASTROPHE MANAGEMENT ) JURY DEMAND
SOLI.UTIONS

Defendant. )

NATURE OF THE ACTION

This is an action brought under Ti!le VII of the Civi Rinhts Ac! of 1963. as amended. 42

USC. 2000e q xu. We VIITh, and Title I of the Ci i Rights Act of I 991 to correct unlawlul

employment ractices on the basis of race I black) and to proxicte appropriate relief to Chastity C.

Jones who was adversely affected by the unlawful practices.

Specifically, Plaintiff US. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission alleges that

Defendant Catastrophe Management Solulions (‘‘Catastrophe’’) maintained a racially

discriminator’ policy of prohibiting employees ifOfli wearing oreadlocks and enforced the pol cv

against Chast iv C - Jones by withdrawing an offer ol employment when she refused to comply

with the polic

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

I Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to 2$ USC. §* 451. 1331, 1337,

1343. and 1345. ihis action is authoriied and instituted pursuant to Sections “(JOt fBI and
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of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 200Cc. 5 fl( 1) and (3)

‘1 ide V 11Th and Section lU2 oftheCivil Rights Act of 1001.42 U.S.C. lOXIa.

2. ilic eniplovinent practices alleged to he unlawliti herein were committed w’thin

the jurisdiction of the United States District Court lhr the Southern District of Al abaina. Selma

Division.

PARTIES

3 Plainti II. US. Equal Employment Oppor unity Commission (the Commission’’),

is the agency of the United States ol America charged with the administration, interpretation, and

enforcement of Title VII. and is expressly authorized to bring this action by Section 706(fl(l)

and (3)of Title Vi!. 42 U.S .C. § 2000e—5 (1). (I) and (3’).

4. At all relevant times, Defendant Cal astrophie has conti nuouslv been doing

business in the State of:\Iabama. in the Cdv of Mobile and at all relevant times had at least

Ii heen (15) employees.

5. At all relevant times. Defendant Employer has continuously been and employer

enuagec! ni an industry aflèctint commerce within the meaning of 701(h). (g) and (Ii) of Title

VII, 42 U.S.C. §*200Oe(h), (g) and (h).

STATEMENTOFCLAIMS

6. More than 30 day’s prior to the institution of this lawsuit, Chastity C. Jones tiled a

charge ot discrim i nan on with the Commission alleging violations of Ti tie VI] h> Defendant

Catastrophe, .\ll conditions precedent to the tiling ot tIns lasuit ha\ c been titIfilled.

7. Si nec on or about May 201 0. Defendant Catastrophe has enu;iued in unlawful

emplo>ancnt practices at its Mobile. Alabama location in violation of 42 t. S.C. 2000e—2( a)t I

2

Case 1:13-cv-00476-CB-M   Document 1   Filed 09/30/13   Page 2 of 5



and 42 S.C. § 2000&2(m) by implementing a policy that prohibited employees 1mm wearing

dreadloeks and enforcing that policy against (hastily C. Jones.

S. Deflmdant’s policy states as lollow 5:

- ‘All personnel are expected to he dresed and groomed ma nanner that prot eels a
pm tessional ann husinessl ke image while adhering to company and industry
standards and or guidelines -

. hairstx Ic should reilcet a businesspro tessional
tnage.No excessive hairstyles or unusual colors are acceptable.

0, I)efln’idant interpreted its po cv to prohibit dreadi,oeks.

It). Defendant conditioned the employment of Chastity C. Jones m her cutting oil her

dreadloeks. and then withdrew the otThr ofeinplovment when she declined.

I . Defendant’s application of its pu1 cv to prohibit dreadlocks constitutes an

employment practice that diseri ninates on the basis of race, black.

12. The effect of the practices complained of above has been to deprive

Chastity C. Jones of equal employment opportunities and to otherwise adversely afIet

her status as an employee because of her race (black).

13. The unlawful employment practices complained of above were intentional.

1 4. The unlawful employment practices complained of above were done with malice

or reckless indifference to the federally proiected rights of Chastity C. Jones.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WI TEREFOREE. the Commission respecilbllv requests that this Court:

• Grant a permanent injunction enoi ning the Defnidant Catastrophe N I anagement

Solutions. it_s owners. oliccrs. successors. assigns and all persons in active concert or

litpmion with it. hum engaging in an\ employment practice which discriminates

against blacks, by suhjectinu them to disparate terms and conditions ol’emplo>ment

3
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13. Order Defendant Catastrophe N lananement Solutions to institute and earn out

policies, practices ,and programs which provide equal employment opportuiliti es lbr

all ciii iO}CCS. and which eradicate the effects of its past and present unlawful

employment practices.

C. Order Defendant to make whole Chastity C. Jones. hx providing appropriate hack pa

with pre—j udument interest, in amounts to be determined at trial. aml other a flirmative

relief necessary to eradicate the effects of its unlawful emplo mciii practices.

including hut not limited to reinstatement and. or ho nt av.

D. Order Defendant Catastrophe Management Solutions to pa> Chastity C Jones,

ptinitive damages f& its malicious and reckless conduct in an amount to he

determined at trial.

E. Grant such further relief as the Court deems necessary and proper in the public

interest.

F Award the Commission us costs in this action.

4
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JURY TRIAL DEMAND

llie Commission requests a jury trial on all questions of lact nil sed Nv its complaint -

RESPECTFULLY SURNIEFFED.

P. DAVID LOPEZ
General Counsel

JAMES L. LEE
Depii’tv General Counsel

G\VENDOLYN YOUNG REAMS
Associate General Counsel

Equal Employment Opportunity Coiriiriission
131 M Street P.
Washington. D.C. 20507

C. EMANUEL SNITTII
Regional Attorney
Mississippi Bar 7473

J

JULIE BEAN
Supervisory Trial Attorney
13G. Barr 433292

Equal limp lovnient Opportunit\ Comm ssion
Birminuham Di strict 0111cc
Ridge Park Place. Suite 201)1)
1130 22 ad Street S ou (Ii
Birminuham. AL 3 52( )5
(205) 212-2045

5

I

Case 1:13-cv-00476-CB-M   Document 1   Filed 09/30/13   Page 5 of 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chapter 10 – Criminal Law DEI Course Planning Template 
  



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7rtt JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: JARROD PETER AGEN 

DOB: 11/17/1977 
SEX/RACE: M/W 

CONFIDENTIAL/Non-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 01/1/2015-
01/1/2018 

Place of Offense: Flint, MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRAND JURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: PERJURY DURING AN INVESTIGATIVE SUBPOENA 
EXAMINATION 

Did knowingly and willfully make a false statement or statements under oath 
during investigative subpoena interview testimony conducted on February 11, 2017, 
by a Special Assistant Attorney General pursuant to MCL 767A in the matter of the 
Flint Water Crisis; contrary to MCL 767 A.9. [767 A.9] 

FELONY: 15 years 

I hereby certify that the foregoi g in ictmenl is 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN 
7th JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

The People of the State of Michigan 

DEF: GERALD AMBROSE 

DOB: 02/22/1944 
SEX/RACE: M/W 

VS 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

Offense Information 
Police Agency / Report No. 

CASE NO: 
20-113791-PZ 

Date of Offense 10/1/2013-03/20/2014 

Place of Offense Flint, Ml 

Complaining Witness 
GRAND JURY 

GRAND JURY INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the above named defendant: 

COUNT1: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during his tenure as the appointed 
Finance Director by allowing the City of Flint to incur debt in violation of the Home Rule City Act; contrary 
to MCL 750.S0SC. [750.505-C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

DATE: 

Grand Juror 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: GERALD AMBROSE 

DOB: 02/22/1944 
SEX/RACE: M/W 

CONFIDENTIAL/Non-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 01/01/2013-
4/30/2015 

Place of Offense: Flint. MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRAND JURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during his 
tenure as the state-appointed Emergency Manager from January 2015 to April 
2015 by rejecting opportunities to switch the City of Flint's drinking water source 
back to Detroit Water and Sewerage Department, when he had knowledge of 
ongoing quality issues and health risks associated with Flint's drinking water as 
well as local opposition to continued use of the Flint River; contrary to MCL 
750.505C. (750.505-C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

COUNT 2: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

1 
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Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during his 
tenure as the state-appointed Emergency Manager by directing a private consulting 
company hired by the City of Flint in early 2015 to address water quality and safety 
concerns to not evaluate or consider switching back to DWSD supplied water when he 
had knowledge of ongoing quality issues and health risks associated with Flint's 
drinking water as well as local opposition to continued use of the Flint River; contrary 
to MCL 750.505C. [750.505-C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

COUNT 3: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during his 
tenure as the state-appointed Emergency Manager by, immediately prior to his 
resignation as Emergency Manager in April 2015, when he had knowledge of 
continuing quality issues and health risks associated with Flint's drinking water 
as well as local opposition to continued use of the Flint River, committing the 
City of Flint to a $7 million emergency loan to address its ongoing deficit that 
impeded Flint's ability to switchback to Detroit Water and Sewerage 
Department for its drinking water source; contrary to MCL 750.505C. [750.505-
C] 
FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

I hereby certify that the foreg 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: RICHARD LOUIS BAIRD 

DOB: 8/24/1956 
SEX/RACE: M/W 

CONFIDENTIAL/Non-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 12/1/2015-
01/1/2019 

Place of Offense: Flint, MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRANDJURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: PERJURY DURING AN INVESTIGATIVE SUBPOENA 
EXAMINATION 

Did knowingly and willfully make a false statement or statements under oath 
during investigative subpoena interview testimony conducted on March 1, 2017, by 
a Special Assistant Attorney General pursuant to MCL 767 A in the matter of the 
Flint Water Crisis; contrary to MCL 767A.9. [767A.9] 

FELONY: 15 years 

COUNT 2: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during his 
tenure as a public officer and appointed member of the Executive Office of Governor 

1 
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Snyder, by improperly using state personnel and resources; contrary to MCL 
750.505C. [750.505-C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

COUNT 3: OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE 

Did commit obstruction of justice, an indictable offense at common law, during his 
tenure as a public officer and appointed member of the Executive Office of Governor 
Snyder by attempting to influence and/or interfere with ongoing legal proceedings 
arising from the Flint Water Crisis; contrary to MCL 750.505C. [750.505C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

COUNT 4: EXTORTION 

Did knowingly and willfully communicate a threat to cause harm to the reputation 
and/or employment of a leader of the state-appointed Flint Area Community Health 
and Environmental Partnership ("F ACHEP") with the intent to coerce him to act 
against his will during F ACHEP's investigation into the source of the Legionnaires' 
Disease outbreak in Genesee County, Michigan; contrary to MCL 750.213 [750.213] 

FELONY: 20 years and/or $10,000.00 

DATE: 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: HOW ARD CROFT 

DOB: 06/24/1965 
SEX/RACE: M/B 

CONFIDENTIALJNon-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 10/01/2013-
10/01/2015 

Place of Offense: Flint, MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRAND JURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: WILLFUL NEGLECT OF DUTY 

Did willfully neglect to communicate information, and/or risks of health effects, 
associated with the Flint Water Supply System, thereby failing to ensure the safety 
and quality of the Flint Water Supply System for its residents in violation of his 
duties as the Emergency Manager appointed Director of Department of Public 
Works for the City of Flint; contrary to MCL 750.478. [750.478] 

MISDEMEANOR: Not more than 1 year and/or fine of not more than $1,000.00 

COUNT 2: WILLFUL NEGLECT OF DUTY 

Did willfully neglect to pursue, and/or communicate, corrosion concerns in the Flint 
Water Supply System, thereby failing to ensure the safety and quality of the Flint 
Water Supply System for its residents in violation of his duties as the Emergency 
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Manager appointed Director of Department of Public Works for the City of Flint; 
contrary to MCL 750.478. [750.478] 

MISDEMEANOR: Not more than 1 year and/or fine of not more than $1,000.00 

I hereby certify that the foregoing i is a T 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN 
7th JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

The People of the State of Michigan 

DEF: DARNELL EARLEY 

DOB: 11/01/1951 
SEX/RACE: M/B 

VS 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

Offense Information 
Police Agency / Report No. 

CASE NO: 
20-113791-PZ 

Date of Offense 10/1/2013-03/20/2014 

Place of Offense Flint, Ml 

Complaining Witness 
GRAND JURY 

GRAND JURY INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the above named defendant: 

COUNT1: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during his tenure as state­
appointed Emergency Manager by allowing the City of Flint to incur debt in violation of the Home Rule 
City Act; contrary to MCL 750.S0SC. [750.505-C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

DATE: 

I hereby hat tht tore 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: DARNELL EARLEY 

DOB: 11/01/1951 
SEX/RACE: M/B 

CONFIDENTIAL/Non-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 10/01/2013-
01/20/2015 

Place of Offense: Flint, MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRAND JURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during his 
tenure as state-appointed Emergency Manager by disseminating misleading 
information on or about Janua1")' 2, 2015, about the City of Flint's drinking water, 
while refusing to switch Flint's drinking water source back to the Detroit Water 
and Sewerage Department, when he had knowledge of ongoing quality issues and 
health risks associated with Flint's di·inking water; contrary to MCL 750.505C. 
[750.505-C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

COUNT 2: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during his 
tenure as state-appointed Emergency Manager by disseminating misleading 
information on or about January 9, 2015, about the City of Flint's drinking water, 
while refusing to switch Flint's drinking water source back to the Detroit Water 
and Sewerage Department, when he had knowledge of ongoing quality issues and 
health risks associated with Flint's drinking water; contrary to MCL 750.505C. 
[750.505-CJ 

tbf ORIGINAL 



.. 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: NICOLAS LYON 

DOB: 11/23/1968 
SEX/RACE:M/W 

CONFIDENTIAL/Non-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 01/28/2015-
01/13/2016 

Place of Offense: Flint, MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRAND JURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of John Snyder on June 30, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 2: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Debra Kidd on August 2, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 

1 
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citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. (750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 3: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Brian McHugh on July 5, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the gi·ossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. (750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 4: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Du Wayne Nelson on August 7, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. (750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 5: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Nelda Hunt on July 22, 2015 by the grossly negligent failure 
to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. (750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 6: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Peter Derscha on August 17, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. (750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 7: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Thomas Mulcahy on August 22, 2015 by the grossly 
negligent failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the 
health of the citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of 
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that duty in accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. 
[750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 8: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Arthur Percy on August 31, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 9: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Patricia Schaffer on July 23, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 10: WILLFUL NEGLECT OF DUTY 

As Director of the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services, a public 
officer, did willfully neglect his mandatory legal duty to protect the health of 
citizens of Michigan under the Michigan Public Health Code (Act 368 of 1978). 
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6 0RJGINA1 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: NANCY PEELER 

DOB: 07/21/1962 
SEX/RACE: F/W 

CONFIDENTIAL/Non-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 7/23/2015-
10/02/2015 

Place of Offense: Flint, MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRAND JURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during her 
tenure as Manager of the Early Childhood Health Section at the Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services on July 28, 2015, by concealing the 
results of an epidemiological analysis concerning elevated blood lead levels of 
children in the City of Flint; contrary to MCL 750.505C. [750.505-C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

COUNT 2: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, during her 
tenure as Manager of the Early Childhood Health Section at the Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services on September 23, 2015, by 
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misrepresenting information concerning elevated blood lead levels of children in the 
City of Flint; contrary to MCL 750.505C. [750.505-C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

COUNT 3: WILLFUL NEGLECT OF DUTY 

Did commit willful neglect of duty during her tenure as Manager of the Early 
Childhood Health Section at the Michigan Department of Health and Human 
Services between July and September 2015 by failing to act upon indications of 
elevated blood lead levels of children in the City of Flint; contrary to MCL 750.478. 
[750.478] 

MISDEMEANOR: 1 year and/or $1,000.00 

I hereby certify that the foreg 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: RICHARD DALE SNYDER 

DOB: 8/19/1958 
SEX/RACE: MJW 

CONFIDENTIAL/Non-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 04/25/2014-
12/31/2018 

Place of Offense: Flint, MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRAND JURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: WILLFUL NEGLECT OF DUTY 

As Governor of the State of Michigan, a public officer, did willfully neglect his 
mandatory legal duty under Article V, section 8 and 10, of the Michigan 
Constitution, by failing to inquire into the performance, condition and 
administration of the public offices and officers that he appointed and was required 
to supervise; contrary to MCL 750.478. 

MISDEMEANOR: 1 year and/or $1,000.00 
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COUNT 2: WILLFUL NEGLECT OF DUTY 

As Governor of the State of Michigan, a public officer, did willfully neglect his 
mandatory legal duty to protect citizens of this state against disaster and/or 
emergency under Public Act 390 of 1976 (Emergency Management Act) by failing to 
declare a state of emergency and/or disaster when the Governor had notice of a 
threat of a disaster and/or emergency in the City of Flint; contrary to MCL 750.4 78. 

I hereby certify that the foregoin 
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STATE OF MICHIGAN 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 7TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

GENESEE COUNTY 

GRAND JURY FELONY INDICTMENT 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 

V 

DEF: EDEN WELLS 

DOB: 01/10/1963 
SEX/RACE:F/W 

CONFIDENTIAL/Non-Public 
File No. 2020-113791-PZ 

Offense Information 
Police Agency/Report No. 

Date of Offense: 0l/0l/2015-
03/03/2017 

Place of Offense: Flint, MI 

Complaining Witness: 
GRAND JURY 

INDICTMENT 

THE GRAND JURY OF THE COUNTY OF GENESEE PRESENTS THAT: 

On or about the above date in County of GENESEE, State of MICHIGAN, the 
above-named defendant: 

COUNT 1: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of John Snyder on June 30, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 2: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Debra Kidd on August 2, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
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citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321) 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 3: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Brian McHugh on July 5, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321) 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 4: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Du Wayne Nelson on August 7, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321) 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 5: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Nelda Hunt on July 22, 2015 by the grossly negligent failure 
to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321) 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 6: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Peter Derscha on August 17, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321) 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 7: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Thomas Mulcahy on August 22, 2015 by the grossly 
negligent failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the 
health of the citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of 
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that duty in accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. 
[750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 8: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Arthur Percy on August 31, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 9: INVOLUNTARY MANSLAUGHTER 

Did cause the death of Patricia Schaffer on July 23, 2015 by the grossly negligent 
failure to perform the following legal duty, to-wit: failing to protect the health of the 
citizens of Michigan and/or by the grossly negligent performance of that duty in 
accordance with the public health code; contrary to MCL 750.321. [750.321] 

FELONY: 15 years and/or $7,500.00 

COUNT 10: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, as the Chief 
Medical Officer of the State of Michigan, by preventing and/or attempting to 
prevent the distribution of public health information about Legionnaires Disease in 
Genesee County to impacted communities and individuals; contrary to MCL 
750.505C. [750.505C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 

COUNT 11: MISCONDUCT IN OFFICE 

Did commit misconduct in office, an indictable offense at common law, as the Chief 
Medical Officer of the State of Michigan, by preventing and/or attempting to 
prevent state-appointed public health professionals from sharing information with 
the public and other public health officials about the Legionnaires' Disease outbreak 
in Genesee County; contrary to MCL 750.505C. [750.505C] 

FELONY: 5 years and/or $10,000.00 
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COUNT 12: WILLFUL NEGLECT OF DUTY 

As Chief Medical Officer of the State of Michigan, a public officer, did willfully 
neglect her mandatory legal duty to protect the health of the citizens of Michigan 
under the Michigan Public Health Code (Act 368 of 1978). 

I hereby certify that the fore 
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NO._____________        JEFFERSON CIRCUIT COURT 

DIVISION_________ 

    JUDGE________________ 

ELECTRONICALLY FILED 

TAMIKA PALMER,  PLAINTIFF 

as Administratrix of the ESTATE OF 

BREONNA TAYLOR 

v.      COMPLAINT 

BRETT HANKISON 

2203 Wendell Ave. 

Louisville, KY 40205 

-and-

MYLES COSGROVE 

2844 Brookdale Avenue 

Louisville, KY 40220 

-and-

JONATHAN MATTINGLY DEFENDANTS 

8913 Meadow Street Way 

Louisville, KY 40228 

*** *** *** *** *** 

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. At 12:30 am on March 13, 2020 both Breonna Taylor and Kenneth Walker were

asleep in their bedroom. Breonna was scheduled to work later in the day. Breonna was a licensed 

EMT and worked for two local hospitals. Kenneth, her boyfriend, was set to begin his new position 

with the postal service. Neither of the two had any criminal history for drugs or violence. 

Neighbors described Breonna and Kenneth as quiet and peaceful. Friends and family describe the 

two as loving and caring. While Breonna and Kenneth were sleeping peacefully, the three 

Defendants arrived in their neighborhood in plain clothes in unmarked vehicles. These Defendants 
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2 

were working within the criminal interdiction unit of the Louisville Metro Police Department. The 

Defendants had a knock and announce search warrant for Breonna’s apartment, where the officers 

were searching for an individual who lived in a different part of Louisville. The Defendant officers 

had an ambulance staged around the corner from Breonna’s residence, yet did not defer to the 

LMPD SWAT unit for execution of the warrant. Furthermore, the individual that the officers were 

seeking had already been apprehended by LMPD earlier that morning at his own home. As the 

Defendant officers approached Breonna’s home, they did so in a manner which kept them from 

being detected by neighbors. The officers then entered Breonna’s home without knocking and 

without announcing themselves as police officers. The Defendants then proceeded to spray gunfire 

into the residence with a total disregard for the value of human life. Shots were blindly fired by 

the officers all throughout Breonna’s home and also into the adjacent home, where a five-year-old 

child and a pregnant mother had been sleeping. Breonna Taylor was shot at least eight times by 

the officers’ gunfire and died as a result. Breonna had posed no threat to the officers and did 

nothing to deserve to die at their hands. The Plaintiff brings this personal injury and wrongful 

death action in order to obtain damages resultant from the Defendants’ unlawful conduct, which 

directly and proximately caused the death a young, beautiful human being who was also an 

essential front-line medical professional in this community. 

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. Jurisdiction and venue are proper due to the location of the incident, the claimed

damages and the matters in controversy. 

III. THE PARTIES

3. Plaintiff is the mother of the deceased, Breonna Taylor, and is the duly appointed
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3 

administratrix of Breonna’s estate.1 

4. Defendants Brett Hankison, Myles Cosgrove, and Jonathan Mattingly were, at all

times relevant to this action, employees of Louisville Metro Government who worked as police 

officers in the Louisville Metro Police Department.  They are each sued in their individual 

capacities. 

IV. FACTS

5. Breonna Taylor was 26 years old on March 13, 2020.

6. She was a critical, front-line employee during the beginning phases of the

coronavirus pandemic, working for both Jewish and Norton hospitals. 

7. Breonna was also a certified EMT.

8. Breonna lived at 3003 Springfield Drive with her younger sister and Kenneth, each

of whom are African American. 

9. Other than a couple of speeding tickets, Breonna had no criminal history. She was

not violent and posed no threat to the community. 

10. Breonna had no drugs in her home.

11. Kenneth, who had a license to carry, kept firearms in the home for protection.

12. Kenneth also had no history of violence and no history of drug offenses.

13. At 12:30 am on March 13, 2020 both Breonna and Kenneth were asleep in their

bedroom. 

14. Breonna’s sister was out of town.

15. The Defendants were each working at the time.

16. Defendant Mattingly was an LMPD sergeant at the time Breonna was shot.

1 Exhibit A: Jefferson District Court Order. 
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4 

17. Defendant Cosgrove was an LMPD officer at the time Breonna was shot.

18. Cosgrove has a prior history of shooting a Louisville resident seven times.

19. Defendant Hankison was an LMPD officer at the time Breonna was shot.

20. Defendant Hankison has a prior history of unnecessary force and corruption within

his employment. 

21. Hankison’s documented use of force history within LMPD is pages long,

documenting dozens of situations where he has sent citizens to the hospital for injuries from being 

tased, pepper sprayed and struck repeatedly in the nose and eyes. Hankison has taken out his anger 

both while on the job and during his off-duty security detail at bars on Shelbyville Road. He has a 

history of fighting with citizens, breaking out car windshields with flashlights, and punching 

citizens with such force that Hankison himself has needed stitches in his hand.  

22. The Defendant officers, on the early morning of March 13, 2020 had a warrant that

they were going to execute at Breonna’s home. 

23. Also that morning, colleagues of the Defendants were executing one or more

warrants at one or more additional Louisville locations in an effort to locate Jamarcus Glover. 

24. LMPD requires that a Risk Assessment Matrix (LMPD #05-0016) be completed

prior to the service of all search warrants.2 

25. This is a ministerial duty of all LMPD officers.

26. There is a ministerial duty imposed upon LMPD commanding officers to complete

an Arrest/Search Warrant Information Sheet (LMPD #05-0023) and notify the Special Weapons 

and Tactics (SWAT) Team Commander to coordinate a response if:  

a. The Risk Assessment Matrix score necessitates the use of the SWAT unit; or

2 Louisville Metro Police Department Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) 8.1.13. 
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5 

b. The situation requires a mandatory SWAT unit call-out, as listed on the Risk

Assessment Matrix, regardless of the score. 3

27. The Defendants, none of whom were assigned to the SWAT unit at the time of the

subject incident, each had a ministerial duty to refrain from executing the warrant on Breonna’s 

home if either of the factors in paragraphs 26(a) or 26(b) above were present.  

28. The Defendants did not adhere to this duty.

29. Defendant Mattingly, as the commanding officer in charge of executing the warrant

on Breonna’s home, had a ministerial duty to complete a Search Warrant Operations Plan form 

(LMPD #05-0025).4  

30. Prior to warrant service, Defendant Mattingly, as the acting Incident Commander

(IC) for service of the search warrant, was required to implement and follow the Incident 

Command System (ICS). Mattingly was required to conduct a briefing with all search team 

personnel that included: 

a. A review of operations and procedures that the search personnel will follow.

b. An analysis of conditions at the premises utilizing maps, charts, and diagrams,

when appropriate.

c. Tactics and equipment that are to be used in the event of forced entry.

d. A pre-planned hospital route.

31. The Defendants did not adhere to this duty, as evidenced by the fact that a hospital

route had to be planned after the Defendants fired more than 20 shots into Breonna’s home. 

32. The Defendants were required, prior to executing the warrant, to notify Metrosafe

3 Id. 
4 SOP 8.1.17 
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6 

that the search warrant was being executed.5 

33. The Defendants were required to wear body armor as part of the entry procedures

into Breonna’s home.6 

34. Before entry to Breonna’s home was made by the Defendants, the Defendant

officers each had a ministerial duty to identify themselves as law enforcement officers and state 

their intent to execute a search.7  

35. The Defendants did not adhere to this duty.

36. The Defendants each had a ministerial duty to comply with the terms of the warrant

which, upon information and belief, included knocking and announcing themselves prior to 

entering Breonna’s home and confirming prior to execution that probable cause still existed for 

the warrant’s execution. 

37. The Defendants did not adhere to this duty.

38. The Defendants, even with a valid search warrant, had a ministerial duty to call off

the warrant’s execution if the probable cause listed on the affidavit no longer existed.8 

39. The Defendants did not adhere to this duty.

40. If the matrix identifies that the warrant’s execution is high risk, then the SWAT unit

is required to execute the warrant. 

41. SWAT did not execute the warrant at Breonna Taylor’s home.

42. SWAT did not execute the warrant at Jamarcus Glover’s home.

43. LMPD was successful in locating Jamarcus Glover at his home, detaining him,

executing a search, identifying drugs and firearms, and arresting Glover. 

5 Id. 
6 SOP 8.1.18 
7 SOP 8.1.19 
8 SOP 8.1.17 
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44. Glover was located and identified by LMPD prior to the warrant being executed at

Breonna’s home. 

45. Despite this, the Defendants elected to proceed with executing the warrant at

Breonna’s home. 

46. There were no drugs in Breonna’s home.

47. The Defendant officers, despite determining that the warrant was of a low risk

nature (and thus one which SWAT did not need to execute), had an ambulance staged around the 

corner from Breonna’s home.  

48. As confirmed by multiple neighbors, the Defendant officers did not knock or

identify themselves prior to entering Breonna’s home. 

49. Knocking and announcing is critical for a warrant of this nature to be executed

safely. Reasons include but are not limited to the following: 

a. The officers were in plain clothes;

b. It was 12:40 in the morning;

c. The home was part of a large unit of connected homes containing children;

d. There was nothing to indicate that Breonna Taylor and Kenneth would flee or

pose an unreasonable danger if the officers knocked and identified themselves

as police; and

e. Individuals, under several circumstances, have a lawful right to use deadly force

in order to defend against those who enter their home.

50. The Defendant officers breached the front door and entered the home without

knocking and without announcing themselves. 

51. Breonna and Kenneth were awakened by the Defendants’ unannounced entry into
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8 

their home. 

52. They believed that their home had been broken into by criminals and that they were

in significant, imminent danger. 

53. Kenneth proceeded to call 911.

54. The Defendant officers fired their weapons into Breonna’s home repeatedly.

55. The Defendants fired several shots into the home from outside on the patio.

56. The living room was obscured by curtains; the officers could not see anything inside

the home (past the curtains) within their line of fire when shooting into the home through the glass. 

57. The Defendants fired several shots into the home from outside of the second

bedroom window. 

58. The second bedroom window was obscured by a screen and blinds; there was no

way that the officers could have had a reasonable line of sight when firing into the home from 

outside this window. 

59. The Defendants did not have discretion to shoot blindly into Breonna’s home in

this manner.  

60. The Defendants’ gunshots struck objects in the home’s living room, dining room,

kitchen, bathroom, hallway and both bedrooms. 

61. Several of the Defendants’ gunshots traveled into the adjacent home, where a five-

year-old child and pregnant mother were located. 

62. Breonna was shot several times by the Defendants.

63. Breonna was unarmed when she was shot repeatedly.

64. Breonna posed no threat to the officers when she was shot repeatedly.

65. The Defendant officers acted intentionally, knowingly, unreasonably, maliciously,
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negligently, recklessly, and in bad faith with deliberate indifference to the safety and rights of 

Breonna Taylor when they attempted to execute a warrant without the SWAT unit, proceeded with 

executing the warrant without probable cause,  entered the home unannounced, entered the home 

without permission, entered the home without complying with the terms of the warrant, engaged 

in erratic gunfire and fired at Breonna, who was unarmed and posed no threat, in an intentional, 

erratic and deadly manner. These actions were objectively unreasonable.  

66. The officers failed to use any sound reasonable judgment whatsoever when firing

more than 25 blind shots into multiple homes and causing the wrongful death of Breonna.  

67. The Defendants had absolute, certain and imperative duties to knock, announce

their presence, give Breonna and Kenneth notice that they were peace officers there to serve a 

warrant, offer to show Breonna and Kenneth the warrant and afford the opportunity to be let into 

the home.   

68. Breonna had committed no crime, posed no immediate threat to the safety of the

Defendants, and did not actively resist or attempt to evade arrest prior to being repeatedly shot and 

killed by the Defendants.  

69. The actions of the Defendant officers were made in bad faith, were performed with

a corrupt motive, were outside the scope of the Defendants’ authority, were executed willfully and 

with the intent to harm, and were in violation of Breonna’s constitutional and statutory rights.  

70. The Defendants knew or reasonably should have known that the actions taken

would violate Breonna’s rights. 

71. The Defendants’ actions were made with the malicious intention to cause a

deprivation of Breonna’s constitutional rights. 

72. The Defendants unlawfully and forcibly entered Breonna’s home, causing Breonna
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10 

and Kenneth to have a reasonable fear of imminent peril of death or great bodily harm. 

73. Any defensive force used against the Defendants was due to their forcible and

unlawful entry into Breonna’s home.  

74. Breonna and Kenneth knew, or had reason to believe, that an unlawful and forcible

entry was occurring or had occurred at the time of any defensive force. The Defendants, under the 

facts which were present at the time of their entry into Breonna’s home, had no lawful right to be 

in the home.  

75. The Defendants did not identify themselves prior to or upon entry into the home,

and neither Breonna nor Kenneth knew or reasonably should have known, prior to any use of 

defensive force, that the individuals in their home were peace officers.  

76. The use of force on Breonna Taylor by the Defendants was unreasonable,

excessive, and in violation of clearly established law prohibiting assault, battery, gross negligence.  

77. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct of Defendants, Breonna Taylor

suffered physical injury and emotional trauma when she was shot multiple times and then left to 

die. 

78. As a further direct and proximate result of Breonna’s wrongful death, her survivors,

next of kin, and/or heirs have suffered permanent damages, including, but not limited to, Breonna’s 

destruction of power to labor and earn income, funeral and burial costs, and other expenses, and 

will incur additional expenses in the future.  

79. The Defendants’ conduct was grossly negligent, reckless, malicious, willful,

wanton, and conducted with a flagrant indifference for the value of human life with a subjective 

awareness that those within the residence would be seriously injured or killed. As such, punitive 

damages are necessary against the officers.  
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11 

COUNT I 

Battery 

80. Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs by reference.

81. On March 13, 2006 the Defendants, in intentionally shooting Breonna repeatedly

without the privilege or authority to do so, committed battery upon her several times. 

82. As a result of this conduct, Breonna Taylor suffered harm.

83. Plaintiff’s damages secondary to the Defendants’ conduct include Breonna's

physical and emotional pain and suffering, destruction of power to labor and earn income, funeral 

and burial costs, as well any other damages secondary to the actions of the Defendants. 

84. The Plaintiff is entitled to punitive damages due to the Defendants’ conduct.

COUNT II 

Wrongful Death 

85. Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs by reference.

86. The Defendants’ actions caused the wrongful death of Breonna Taylor, resulting in

damages recoverable under K.R.S. § 411.130 and K.R.S. § 411.133. 

87. Plaintiff’s damages secondary to the Defendants’ conduct include Breonna's

physical and emotional pain and suffering, destruction of power to labor and earn income, funeral 

and burial costs, as well any other damages secondary to the actions of the Defendants. 

88. The Plaintiff is entitled to punitive damages due to the Defendants’ conduct.

COUNT III 

Excessive Force in Violation of KRS 431.025 

89. Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs by reference.

90. The Defendants each had a statutory duty, pursuant to KRS 431.025(3), to refrain
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from using unnecessary force upon Breonna. 

91. The Defendants used unnecessary force and violence upon Breonna Taylor in

violation of KRS 431.025. 

92. This statute was enacted to prevent the type of conduct associated with the

Defendants. 

93. The Defendants were negligent per se.

94. The Defendants’ violations of this statute were direct and proximate causes of

Breonna Taylor’s death and the claimed damages herein.  

95. Plaintiff’s damages secondary to the Defendants’ conduct include Breonna's

physical and emotional pain and suffering, destruction of power to labor and earn income, funeral 

and burial costs, as well any other damages secondary to the actions of the Defendants. 

96. The Plaintiff is entitled to punitive damages due to the Defendants’ conduct.

COUNT IV 

Negligence and Gross Negligence 

97. Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs by reference.

98. Each of the Defendants breached their respective ministerial duties of reasonable

care owed to Breonna Taylor, with said breaches serving as direct and proximate causes of her 

injuries and damages. 

99. These ministerial duties included, but were not limited to:

a. Mandatory activation of the SWAT team for the planning and execution of the

search warrant.

b. Calling off the warrant once the primary target was apprehended elsewhere.

c. Calling off the warrant once probable cause no longer existed.
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d. Knocking and announcing prior to making entry into Breonna’s home.

e. Accurately, completely, and specifically completing the affidavit in support of

the search warrant so that an informed decision could be made as to the probable

cause for the warrant and its terms of execution.

f. Refraining from blind gunfire into a home which the Defendants knew or

should have known was occupied by an unarmed 26-year-old female.

100. The Defendants’ failures to adhere to their ministerial duties owed to Breonna

Taylor were a substantial factor in her death and the claimed damages herein. 

101. Plaintiff’s damages secondary to the Defendants’ conduct include Breonna's

physical and emotional pain and suffering, destruction of power to labor and earn income, funeral 

and burial costs, as well any other damages secondary to the actions of the Defendants. 

102. The Plaintiff is entitled to punitive damages due to the Defendants’ conduct.

VII. JURY DEMAND

103. Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury of all issues so triable.

VIII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands that this Court award the following: 

a. Compensatory damages in an amount to be shown at trial.

b. Punitive damages in an amount to be shown at trial;

c. Costs incurred in this action and reasonable attorney fees;

d. Prejudgment and post-judgment interest; and

e. Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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Respectfully Submitted, 

SAM AGUIAR INJURY LAWYERS, PLLC 

/s/ Sam Aguiar  

Sam Aguiar 

Lonita Baker 

1201 Story Avenue, Suite 301 

Louisville, KY 40206 

Telephone: (502) 400-6969 

Facsimile: (502) 491-3946 

sam@kylawoffice.com  

lonita@kylawoffice.com  

Counsel for Plaintiff 
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